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9 ATLAS CAPITAL UK 2018 FEMN 09JUIN25 B @R 7.040000 2025/6/ 9 248
10 ATLAS CAPITAL UK 2019 FRM 08JUMN26 ZiE EEFICHA 12240000 2026/ 6/ 8 238

CENEEHERAR. TS — - PR ST A T SRR OB EO R ELLET.
GE 2 EHRETTE SRR N T - S EDELTWEY.
(EINEFRPOERELUTRERE. FERRAETY.

741259



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021

2021

75/259



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021
¢ ( ) )
2019 99,501,492 | 11,136,207 98.86 11,064 9,737
2020 93,722,480 | 10,489,420 101.45 11,354 10,010
2021 78,600,643 | 8,796,984 100.40 11,237 9,994
2020 10 76,205,119 | 8,528,877 105.98 11,861 10,478
11 68,644,264 | 7,682,666 100.37 11,233 10,036
12 68,807,159 | 7,700,897 100.80 11,282 10,074
2021 68,468,246 | 7,662,966 100.54 11,252 10,018
77,315,549 | 8,653,156 98.93 11,072 9,849
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77,226,451 | 8,643,184 99.64 11,152 9,916
78,600,643 | 8,796,984 100.40 11,237 9,994
77,807,457 | 8,708,211 100.93 11,296 10,044
78,699,965 | 8,808,100 100.77 11,278 10,027
80,360,329 | 8,993,928 100.83 11,285 10,031
77,744,717 | 8,701,189 101.19 11,325 10,061
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627,640 2,000 625,640
2018 11 15 2019 (627,640) (2,000) (625,640)
77,120 156,310 546,450
2019 2020 (77,120) (156,310) (546,450)
131,380 141,470 536,360
2020 2021 (131, 380) (141,470) (536,360)
419,860 0 419,860
2018 11 15 2019 (419,860) ) (419,860)
17,880 25,700 412,040
2019 2020 (17,880) (25,700) (412,040)
57,850 197,550 272,340
2020 2021 (57,850) (197,550) (272,340)
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2021 31
2021 31
77,983,762 8,727,943
71,258,765 23
2 352,705 39,475
221,187 2 213,412 23,885
931,870 104,295
113,487 12,701
79,595,236 8,908,299
13,749 1,539
854,649 95,652
55 6
6 122,057 13,661
4,083 457
994,593 111,315
78,600,643 8,796,984
NAV
53,852,808
536,360 100.40 11,237
NAV
2,721,643,177
272,340 9,994

2021

24
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2021 31
2021
6,280,941 702,963
5 (689,536) (77,173)
5,591,405 625,790
72 8
72 8
869 97
11,966 1,339
19,213 2,150
268,751 30,079
19,558 2,189
10,000 1,119
460,590 51,549
30,523 3,416
12,197 1,365
101,192 11,325
934,859 104,629
4,656,618 521,169
(1,259,892) (141,007)
192,568 21,552
(200,245) (22,411)
(1,267,569) (141,866)
(425,385) (47,609)
(9,127) (1,021)
(434,512) (48,631)
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4,656,618 521,169
(1,259,892) (141,007)

192,568 21,552
(200,245) (22,411)
(425,385) (47,609)
(9,127) (1,021)

2,954,537 330,672
(2,804,856) (313,919)
(948,591) (106,166)
(3,753,447) (420,086)

131,380 13,249,528 1,482,887

57,850
5,495,928 615,104
141,470
(14,514,388) (1,624,450)
197,550

(18,553,995) (2,076,563)
(14,322,927) (1,603,022)
(15,121,837) (1,692,436)

93,722,480 10,489,420

78,600,643 8,796,984
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330,672

(1,734,047)
3,975,588
(625,790)

141,007
47,609
6,471

4

(1,245)
457

19,127,273

2,140,724

17,813,586
(33,054,634)
(3,753,447)

1,993,697
(3,699,475)
(420,086)

(18,994,495)

(2,125,864)

132,778
433,339

14,861
48,499

566,117

63,360

73
(837)
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101.45 10,010
6.07 645
(1.42) (211)
4.65 434
(5.70) (450)

100.40 9,994
4.58% 4.33%

(1.22%) (1.22%)

(0.89%) (0.94%)

(2.11%) (2.16%)

5.95% 6.38%
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2021 31

2016 29

2018 10 17
2018
11 15

2021

2021 31 63

GAAP GAAP
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ASC 946

GAAP

2021 31

NAV

2021 31
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ASC 740

more likely than not
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50
NAV
ASC 480
ASC 480
2021 31 13,749
ASC 820
ASC 820
ASC 820

ASC 820
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2021 31

77,983,762 77,983,762

77,983,762 77,983,762
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2020 546,450 412,040
131,380 57,850
(141,470) (197,550)
2021 31 536,360 272,340
100
10,000

100 100 10

110/259



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11

2021 31
2,804,856 948,591

2021 31
568,781

100

12,000

5,000
5,000
1,000

1,000

0.025

0.35
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10,000

0.50

0.10

750

2021 31

1,019
1,657
23,200
18,434
849
39,772
2,142
34,984
122,057
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NAV
NAV

COVID-19
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2019 12 2020
COVID-19 (1)
(i)
2021 31
2021 31
109.97500
10
2021 31
11
2021 24
2021 2021 24
1,383,647
2,895,643
5,084,021
45,743
COVID-19

2021 24

114/259



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

NK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)

Shares 258,431 25,473,699 32.41
NK CAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 463,460 52,510,063 66.81
: 71,258,765 77,983,762 99.22

JPY
usb
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3264 Re Ltd FRN 07-Feb-23

Bowline Re 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-22
Bowline Re Ltd 2019 FRN 20-Mar-23

Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 09-May-22

Everglades Re Il Ltd FRN 14-May-24
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd 2018 1 A FRN 06-Aug-21
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd 0.5% 07-Mar-22
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 27-Feb-26
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRN 27-Feb-26
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd FRN 0l1-Mar-24

Galileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 08-Jan-27

Galileo Re Ltd Series C FRN 08-Jan-27

Galileo Re Ltd Series D FRN 08-Jan-27

Kendall Re Ltd FRN 02-May-24

Kilimanjaro 11 Re Ltd FRN 21-Apr-22
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-26
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 Al FRN 06-May-22
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 FRN 05-May-26
Manatee Re Ltd Il Series B FRN 07-Jun-21
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 07-Dec-23

Matterhorn Re Ltd A FRN 07-Dec-23

Matterhorn Re Ltd B FRN 07-Dec-23

Matterhorn Re Ltd Series B FRN 07-Dec-23

Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series A FRN 09-Jan-23

Mona Lisa Re Ltd Series B FRN 09-Jan-23
Mystic Re Iv Ltd FRN 08-Jan-24

Northshore Re Il Ltd 18 1 A FRN 08-Jul-22
Northshore Re 11 Ltd FRN 07-Jul-26

Pelican IV Re Ltd FRN 07-May-24

Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-23
Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27
Sanders Re Ltd FRN 07-Apr-22 Cat

Sierra Ltd FRN 31-Jan-24
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2,000,000 2,041,000 1.66
2,250,000 2,263,050 1.84
3,250,000 3,284,125 2.66
1,375,000 1,393,837 1.13
3,500,000 3,496,500 2.84
3,500,000 3,529,050 2.86
3,500,000 3,444,700 2.80

940,000 942,820 0.76
1,875,000 1,876,500 1.52
1,000,000 1,005,300 0.82
2,000,000 2,004,000 1.63
1,800,000 1,805,760 1.47

500,000 502,300 0.41
1,000,000 1,002,200 0.81
2,000,000 2,016,200 1.64
1,250,000 1,254,000 1.02
2,140,000 2,210,834 1.79
2,140,000 2,228,596 1.81
1,400,000 1,425,760 1.16
1,290,000 1,321,476 1.07
1,250,000 1,252,625 1.02
2,725,000 2,747,073 2.23
2,000,000 1,999,600 1.62
1,750,000 1,633,100 1.32

860,000 860,860 0.70
2,830,000 2,832,264 2.30

900,000 900,540 0.73
3,250,000 3,286,400 2.67
4,000,000 4,038,800 3.28
2,000,000 2,043,400 1.66
2,125,000 2,161,125 1.75
1,330,000 1,373,491 1.11
2,000,000 2,004,000 1.63
3,500,000 175,000 0.14
1,000,000 400,000 0.32
3,550,000 3,195,000 2.59

600,000 601,380 0.49
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2021 31 « )

Sierra Ltd Series B FRN 28-Dec-23 720,000 736,056 0.60
Spectrum Cap Ltd FRN 08-Jun-21 Cat 1,000,000 1,000,400 0.81
Sutter Re Ltd Series F FRN 08-Jun-26 2,250,000 2,304,000 1.87
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 1,250,000 1,237,500 1.00
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 450,000 451,350 0.37
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017 1 B FRN 08-Jan-25 2,450,000 2,437,750 1.98
Torrey Pines Re Pte Ltd FRN 07-Jun-24 3,350,000 3,344,640 2.71
Ursa Re Il Ltd FRN 07-Dec-23 1,000,000 1,031,000 0.84
Ursa Re Il Ltd FRN 06-Dec-24 3,750,000 3,789,375 3.07
Ursa Re Ltd C FRN 10-Dec-22 1,200,000 1,231,680 1.00
Ursa Re Ltd D FRN 24-Sep-21 1,200,000 1,203,480 0.98
Vista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-24 1,750,000 1,754,725 1.42
1 94,543,799 91,074,622 73.91

Caelus Re VI Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 1,700,000 340,000 0.28
Residential Re 18 Ltd FRN 06-Dec-25 2,600,000 2,569,060 2.08
Residential Re 19 Ltd FRN 06-Jun-27 550,000 542,355 0.44
: 4,850,000 3,451,415 2.80

Atlas Capital Re 2020 FRN 08-Jun-27 1,500,000 1,569,750 1.27
Hexagon Reinsurance Dac A FRN 17-Jan-25 250,000 307,308 0.25
Lion Il Re Dac FRN 15-Jul-21 1,500,000 1,831,969 1.49
= 3,449,005 3,709,027 3.01

Cosaint Re Pte Ltd FRN 03-Apr-24 1,000,000 1,016,800 0.82
First Coast Re Il Pte FRN 07-Apr-25 2,500,000 2,504,500 2.03
Manatee Re 11l Pte Ltd A FRN 07-Jun-22 900,000 895,500 0.73
Manatee Re 111 Pte Ltd B FRN 07-Jun-22 2,350,000 2,299,005 1.87
Putnam Re Pte Ltd FRN 07-Jun-24 2,250,000 2,249,775 1.83
= 8,999,967 8,965,580 7.28

IBRD Series A FRN 02-Dec-22 500,000 504,750 0.41

IBRD Series B FRN 13-Jun-24 850,000 861,135 0.70
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2021 31 « )
IBRD Series D FRN 13-Jul-24 650,000 659,815 0.53
: 2,000,000 2,025,700 1.64
Atlas Capital UK 2018 FRN 09-Jun-25 3,000,000 3,014,100 2.45
Atlas Capital UK 2019 FRN 08-Jun-26 2,725,000 2,856,890 2.32
Sussex Cap UK PCC Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,125,000 1,153,687 0.93
- 6,822,125 7,024,677 5.70

: 120,664,896 116,251,021 94.34
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DecuZign Envelops 10: 340C5F28-DDEA-41 1B-A882-88B447 2805

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2021
021

Notes UsD
Assets
Investments in Master Fund, fair value (Cost: USD71,258.765) 23 77,983,762
Cash 2 352,705
Foreign currency cash (Cost: USD221,187) 2 213,412
Subscriptions receivable 931,870
Other assets 113,487
Total Asscts 79,595,236
Liabilities
Redempiions pavable 13,749
Payahle for investments purchased 854,649
Interest payable 55
Fees pavahle i 122,057
Other pavables 4.083
Total Liabilities 994,503
Met Assels TS.&M&
Met Asset Value (“NAY™) per unit - Class USD Units
{based on Net Assets of USDS3,852 808 and 336,360 units outstanding) LUSD100.40
NAY perunit - Class JPY Hedged Units
(based on Nel Assels of JPY2,721,643,177 and 272,340 units outstanding) JPYG 904

Signed on behalf of the Trustee

Decatg by, Boseligned b
(s (witin. Ml (Wt L.
R PR T, . mi‘ﬂ-ﬂ."ﬂlﬂ_ﬂ

Date: Seprember 24, 2021

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations

For the year ended May 31, 2021

Investment income
Interest income allocated from the Master Fund
Expenses allacated from the Master Fund
MWet investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Fund interest income
Total fund income

Expenses

Interest expense

Administration fees

hanager fees

Investment Manager fees

Audit fees

Trustee fees

Distributor/ Agent Company fees

Legal fees

Custodian fees

(nher fees and expenses
Total fund expenses

Met investment income

Met realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation
Realized loss:

Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund
Investments in securities

Foreign currency fransactions

Met realized loss

Change in unrealized depreciation;

Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and forward
currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Foreign currency transaetions

Met change in unrealized depreciation

Met realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation

Net inerease in Net Assets resulting from operations

The aecompanying notes form an imegral part of these finencial statements.

9
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2021
usp

6,280,941
(689.536)

5,591,405

......

Ba0
11,966
19,213

268,751
19,558
10,000

460,590
30,523
12,197

101,192

034,859

4,656,618

(1,259,892)
192,568

(200,245%
(1,267,569)

{425.385)

(9,127)
(434,512)

(1,702,081)
2,954,537
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A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended May 31, 2021

Met inerease in Net Assels resulting from operations

Met investment income

Met realized loss on investments in sccuritics, foreign curreney transactions
and forward currency contracis allocated from the Master Fund

et realized gain on investments in securities

Net realized loss on foreign currency transaclions

Met change in unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Mel change in unrealized depreciation on foreign currency lransactions

Met increase in Net Assets resulting from operations
Distributions to Unitholders:

Class TISD Units
Class JPY Hedged Units

Capital Transactions

Units issued - Class USD Units {131,380 units)

Units issued - Class JPY Hedged Units (57,850 units)

Units redeemed - Class USD Units (141,470 units)

Units redeemed = Class JPY Hedged Units {197,550 units)
Met decrease in Ne Assets resulting from capital ransactions
Total decrease in Net Assets

Met Assets
Beginning of year

End of year

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
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UsD

4,656,618
(1,259,892)

192,568
{200.245)

(425.385)
(9.127)

2954537

(2.804,856)
(948,591)

(3.753.447)

13,249,528

5,495 928
(14.514,388)
_(18,553,995)

(14,322,927)

(15,121,837)

93,722,480

78,600,643
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended May 31, 2021

Cash Mows from operating activities
Met increase in Met Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to recencile net inerease in Net Assets resulling from operalions
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Purchase of investments in the Master Fund

Sale of investments in the Master Fund

Net investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Met realized loss on investments in securitics, foreign currency

transactions and forward cumrency contracts allocated from the Master Fund
Net change in unrezlized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Decrease in other assets
Increase in interest payable

Decrease in fees pavable
Increase in other payables

Met cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows provided by financing activities
Proceeds from units issued

Pavments for units redesmed

Drigtributions paid

et cash used In financing activities

Met change in cash and foreign currency cash
Cash and foreign currency cash at beginning of year

Cash and foreign currency cash at end of year

Supplementary information:
Interest received
Interest paid

The aceompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,954,557

(15.493,633)
38,521,690
(5,591.405)

1,259,892

425,385

57.814

32
(11,122}

4,083

19.127.273
17.813,586

(33.054,634)
(3.753,447)

(18,994,495}

132,778
433,339

117
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(837)
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31, 2021
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units Units
Usp JPY
Per Unit operating performance:
MAY per unit, beginning of vear 101,45 10,010
Income from investment operations (B)
Met investment income 6.07 645
Met realized and change in unrealized loss i 1.42) {211}
Total from investment operations 4.65 434
Distributions (5.7m) (450
NAV per unit, end of vear 100,40 9.904
Total Return (A) 4.58% 4.33%
Ratiosfsupplemental data:
Ratio of expenses (o average Met Assets (A)
Series Trust expenses (1.22%) (1.22%)
Allgcated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses {0.89%g) (0.94%)
Total expenses {2.11%:) (2. 16%)
Ratio of net investment income to average Met
Assets (A)  5.95% _6.38%

{(A) Total return is caleulated based on the change in the NAV during the year, Expense ratio
and net investment income ratio are caloulated based on the average Netl Assels outstanding
throughout the vear. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
aperating expenses. Ratios between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses.
The financial highlights are reflected afer all investment-related and operating expenses,
including income and expenses allocated from the Master Fund.

{B) Results may vary based on the timing of capital ransactions. Per unit information is
caloulated based upon the monthly average unils oulstanding during the vear.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

12
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2021

1. Description of the Trust

MK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Serics Trust™) is a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund, an
open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master Trust
Deed™, under the laws of the Cavman [slands. The Series Trust was constituted by a supplemental
trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed”) dated October 17, 2008, under the laws of the Cayman
Ishands, The Series Trust commeneed operations on Movember 15, 2018,

Effective April 1, 2021, the previous investment manager merged into Legg Mazson Asset
Management (Japan) Co., Lid. Following the merger, Legg Mason Asset Management {Japan) Co.,
Lad, changed its name to Franklin Templetan Japan Co., Lad (the “Investmenmt Manager™).
International Management Services Lid. (the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust's Manager. SMT
Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator™) serves as the Series Trust's Administrator.

The Series Trust's stralegy is consistent with the sirategy of NK CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund™). The Series Trust's investment objective is to scek to achieve risk adjusted absolute returns
by gaining exposure 1o the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds). The Series
‘Trust seeks to achieve this investment objective theough investing in the Master Fund. Accordingly,
the Serics Trust acts as a feeder fund nto the Master Fund such that substantially all of the proceeds
from the sale of the Units will be invested in the Master Fund. The Series Trust owns 63% of the
Master Fund at May 31, 2021.

The Master Fund's linancial statements are attached (o and should be read in conjunction with the
Series Trust"s finencial statements.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, G.AS. (Cavman)
Limited (the “Tmstee™) is named as Trustee of the Senes Trust,

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amernca (“11S. GAAP™). The preparation of fnancial
statements in accordance with U5, GAA requires the Series Trust's management t0 make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting vear, Actual results, including the ultimate amount realized upon the
sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be
significant.

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company

sccounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Cedification (“ASC™) 946,
Financial Services- Investment Companics.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATECGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determination of the value of the Series Trust’s
investments:

The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose objective is 1o seck 1o achicve risk
adjusted absolute returns by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seek to achieve its
investment objective by investing mainly in a global portfolio of CAT Boads which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life end non-life insurance linked risk
inchuding but not limited to life insurance, motor insurance. operational risk, and marine and
aviation and cyber risk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange. are not ordinarily traded
ar exchanged through such secunities exchanges or 8 the price availeble on such securitics
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued wsing mdicative secondary market bid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager.

Investments in the Master Fund were valued. as a practical expedient, utilizing the unaudited
net asset valuations provided by administrators, without adjustment, when the net asset
valuations of the investmenis are calculated in a manner consistent with ULS. GAAP. The
attached audited financial statements of the Master Fund, which include the Master Fund's
valuation and significant accounting policies are an integral part of these financial statements
and should be read in conjunction with the Series Trust's financial statements. The
proporlionate share of income, expenses, gains and losses of the Master Fund is disclosed in the
Series Trust's Statement of Gperations for the year ended May 31, 2021,

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAY per
share as reponted by the Master Fund, Valuation of financial instruments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 21, 2021 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund,

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Imvestment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell s
executed). Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first out
cost method.

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is accrued as carned/incurred. Interest earned
on the Series Trust’s brokerage account, if any, will be accrued monthly. Discounts and

premiums on Bonds are acereted/amortized to maturity on an effective yvield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Operations.

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as incurred,

Foreign Currency Translation

Items which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured using the
eurrency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (“the functional currency™),
this iz Uinited States Dollar (“USD™).

The Series Trust does not isolate that portien of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market
prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized
gain or loss from investments,

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) {(formerly
Sumitomeo Mitsui Trast (UK) Limited) as its sub-custodian. Sumitome Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited (London Branch), has in tum, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (“BBH") as
its global sub-custoedian. Cash and foreign currency comprise cash with original maturities of 3
months or less and are held at BBH as banker.

[neome Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, withhalding, eapital gains
or other taxes payable by the Series Trust, In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman [slands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest received by the Series Trust,
Capital gains derived by the Seres Trust in such jurisdictions generally will be exempt from
foreign income or withholding taxes at source, The Series Trust intends 1o conduet its afTairs
such that it will not be subject to income tax in any jurisdiction, As a result, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may be taxed on their
proportionate share of the Series Trust's tax basis income based on their individual
gircumslances.

The Series Trust follows the authortative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainly in tax posilions (Financiz] Accounting Standards Board ASC 740}, which requires
management to determine whether a tax position of the Series Trust s more likely than not o
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any
refated appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position,

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifiy percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate seitlement with the relevant taxing autherity, The
Manager has determined that there is no ¢ffect on the fimancial statements being under this
authoritative guidance.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Acconnting Folicies (eontinued)

Guarantees andfor Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enters into contracts
that contain a wvariety of representations, which provide general indemnifications. The
Manager's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown (although capped at the
MNAV of the Series Trust), as this would involve future claims that may be made against the
Manager that have not yet occurred, However, based on experience, the Manager expects the
risk of loss 1o be remole.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Acecounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity”, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount and number of
units requested in the redemplion nolice becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the time
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal pericd, depending on the natre of the
request, Redemptions payvable may be trested as capital for purposes of allocations of
gains{losses) pursuant to the Series Trust's poverning documents. As at May 31, 2021, there
were redemptions payable of USDN 3,749,

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC E20, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”. provides additional guidance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or Mability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifving
circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation lechnigques
used to measure fair value. The bierarchy gives the highcst priority to unadjusted listed prices

priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

= Level | = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 = Inputs other than quoted prices that are chservable for the asset or lizbility either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Level 3 — Inputs that are uncbservable,

Inputs arc used in applying the various wvaluation techniques and broadly refer to the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about risk. A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers abservable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary and provided by independent sources that are
actively invalved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the
hietarchy is hased upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond to the Investment Manager®s perceived risk of that instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2021
(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level | with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered Lo be active, but are valued based on
quoted markel prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supporied by ohservable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and/or are subject to transier resirictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and‘or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market
information,

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Series Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2021:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Assets Ush UsD Usiy USD
Investment in Master Fund - 77.983,762 . 77.983 762
Total - 77983, 762 - 77,983,762

There wene no transfers between the levels during the year,

4. Unit Capital

Class JPY

Class USD Hedged

Units Units

Number of units outstanding at June 1, 2020 546,450 412,040
Units issued during the year 131,380 57,850
Units redeemed during the vear (1414700 (197,550
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2021 536,360 271,540

One unitholder holds all of the Units auributable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hedged
Lnits.
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(Continued)

4. Unit Capital (continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USDHO00 per Unit Class JIPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimum
subscription amount per subseriber in respect ofeach clags ol unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD elass of Master Fund Shares. Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of JPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares,

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
MAY per Unit of the relevant elass of unils on the valuation day [alling on the relevant
subscription day.

The subseription day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third valuation day of cach
calendar month andfor such other day or days that the Manager may from time o time
determine in respect of the Series Trust,

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at each repurchase day.
The repurchase day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month and/or such other day or days thal the Manager may from time to Hme determine in
respect of the Series Trust,

The MAY per Unit is caleulated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust's

of Units outstanding. [n the normal course of events, gaing and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benetit or detriment of holders of the applicable non-USD Master
Fund Shares only.

The Manager may declare and arcange for the payment of distribations in respect ol any class
of units of such amount (if any) as shall be determined by the Manager, afler consultation with
the [nvestment Manager, and approved by the Trustee.

The ex-distribution date will be the valuation day which immediately follows the relevant
Distribution. Record Date which is the second Friday of November in each wear, providing that
if such day is not a business day then the immediately following business day and/or such other
date or dates as the Manager mav determine in respeer of any class of Units. For the year ended
May 31, 2021, the Series Trust distributed LSD2 804,836 in respect of Class USD Units and
USD9E, 591 in respect of Class IPY Hedged [Units,
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May 31, 2021
{Continued)

5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one panty has the ability 1o control the other panty or
exercise sipnificant influence over the ather party in making financial or operational decisions.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Trustee and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed 1o be
related to the Series Trust. Fees incurred with related parties during the vear are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations. Amounts pavable to related parties at the vear end are disclosed
in the Statement of Asscts and Liabilities.

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
2021 is USD568,781.

SMBC Mikko Securities Inc., holds 100% of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged, As a result, any actions of SMBC Nikke Secunties Inc., can matenally impact the
Serics Trust.

6. Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD 2,000 per annum
of the MAV, accrued as of each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is also entitled to; (a) an establishment fee of USDE,000; (b) an annual fee
of USDE,000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Series Trust; (¢) an annual fee of USD 000 in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Series Trest with the Cayman Tslands Monetary Authority; and (d)
an annual fee of USD1,000 in connection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain eeports and/for statements reguired for Japanese regulatory purposes.

Manager Fees
Ihe Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trast, a fee of 0.025% per annum of the
MAV, acerved and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives oul of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% per annum
of the MAV, accrued and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.
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6. Fees and Expenses (eontinoed)

Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD10,000 per annum

accrued as at each valuation day and payable menthly in arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.50% per annum of the
MNAV, accrued end calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.10% per annum
of the NAV, acerued and caleulated on cach valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

Custodian Fees

The Custedian is entitled to receive, out of the assels of the Series Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian’s safe keeping fees are USD750 per month, acerued on each
valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at customary rates
as agreed between the Trustee and the Custodian,

The fees payable as at May 31, 2021 are as follows:

usn
Administration fees La19
Manager fees 1.657
Investment Manager fecs 23,200
Audit fees 18,434
Trustee fees B49
Distributor/Agent Company fees 19,772
Custodian fees 2,142
Other fees and expenses _ 34981
122,057

7. Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk), credil risk and liguidity risk.

Market Risk
The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund. All investments present a risk of loss of
capital. The Investrnent Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of invesiments.

The value of the Series Trust’s investments are affected by a number of factors, including but

not limited to. changes in the wider economy, financial and currency markets and foreign
currency exchange rotes.
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7. Financial Risk Management (continucd)

Market Risk (continued)

In a falling market environment. the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decling, and as a result, the NAV may decline below its initigl principal amount, Also, adverse
developments in an issuer’s economic conditions or such negative events as bankruptcy may
cause the value of the equities 1o decline substantially and may significantly impact the NAY,

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and pon-monetary assets and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than USD, It may therefore be exposed 1o
currency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies will
fuctuate due to changes in exchange rates.

If investing in the sccurities of companies that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed 1o risks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencies
may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those securities.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterparties
failed 1w perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust.

Although the Trusiee monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Series Trust may use from time 1o time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead 1o losses for the Series Trust.

While there arc codes and acts lo prodect customer property in the event of a fuilure, insolveney
ar liguidation of an institution, there is no cortainty thal, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to its assets
being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both.
Because all of the Series Trust's cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Series Trust te achieve its
investment objective. The Series Trust is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institation
may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed.

Liquidity Risk

Investors should be aweare that the value of units might fall as well as rise. lnvestment in the
Series Trust involves a degree of risk: there can be no assurance that the Series Trust's
imvestment objective will be achieved.

The Serics Trust is exposcd to reparchase ol s units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and foresecable needs of its business
operations and, if necessary, the liguidity to fund repurchases and achieve a market position
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position s monilored continually by
management to ensure that the Serics Trust has the ability to meet its obligations.
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7. Financial Risk Management (continved)

Ligquidity Risk (continued)

The Series Trust may temporarily suspend the caleulation of the NAV and therefore, the right
of redemptions and subscriptions of offered Units in exeeptional circumstances. No issue or
redemption of Units will lake place during any period when the caleulation of the NAV is
suspended.

The risk of being unable to redeem from the Master Fund is a Series Trust specilic risk. The
potential inability to redeem oul of the Master Fund is a risk for the Series Trost's investors,
especially given the NAY of the Series Trust is derived from the ownership of the Master Fund.

COVID-19

As of the date of these linancial statements, the global COVID-19 pandemic first identified in
December 2019 and declared by the World Health Organization a pandemic in March 2020, is
ongoing. The pandemic (i) has resulted and may continue to result in travel and border
restrictions, quarantines. supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general marker
unceriainty: and (i} has and may continue to adversely affect the global economy and the
economies of cerlzin nations.

4. Commitments and Contingencies
As at May 31, 2021, the Series Trust had no commitments or contingencies,
9. Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liahilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2021:

Japaneze Yen 10997500
10, Recent Pronpuncements
There was no recent pronouncements during the vear ended May 31, 2021,
11. Subsequent Events

Management performed a subsequent events review up lo Seplember 24, 2021, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective June 1, 2021 through to September 24, 2021 investors subscribed L'SD],383,647 in
respect of Class USD Units and USD2,895,643 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units into the
Series Trust and investors redeemed USDS5084,021 in respect of Class USD Units and
USD45,743 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units from the Series Trust.

Az at the date the financial statements were available to be issued. uncertainty still remains
around the length of the disruption of COVIDR-19 and the impact on global markets.

2
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{Continued)
11. Subsequent Events (continued)

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events whieh required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved on September 24, 2021,

23
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Fair
Nominal Value Yo of
Investment in the Master Fund Holding S MNAV
Cayman Islands
MNK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)
Py Shares 258,431 25,473,699 24
LS MNE CAT Bond Fund Class A LISD Shares 463 460 32,510,063 66,81
Total Investment in the Master Fund
(Cost: USD71,258,765) 77,983,762 99.22
Symbaol Currency Country
JPY Japanese Yen Japan
LISD LS, Dallar United States

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments
May 31, 2021

Fair

Nominal Value %% of
CAT Bonds Holding USD NAV
Bermuda
3264 Re Ltd FRN (17-Feb-23 2,000,000 2,041,000 1.66
Bowline Re 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-22 2,250,000 2,263,050 1.84
Bowline Re Lid 2019 FRN 20-Mar-23 3,250,000 3,284,125 266
Cape Lookout Re Lid FREN 09-May-22 1,375,000 1,393,837 1.13
Everglades Re 11 Ltd FRN 14-May-24 3,500,000 3,496,500 284
Flaods-har-t Re Lid 2012 1 A FRN 06-Aug-21 3,500,000 3,529,050 286
Floods-Mar-t e Lid 0.5% 07-Mar-22 3,500,000 3,444,700 2.80
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A4 FRN 27-Feb-26 940,00 032 820 0.76
Flnods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRM 27-Feb-26 1,875,000 1,876,500 1.52
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd FRN 01-Mar-24 1,000,000 1,005,300 .82
Gialileo Re Ltd Series A FRN 08-Jan-27 2,000,000 2,004 0100 163
Galileo Re Lid Series C FRN 08-lan-27 1,800,000 1,805,760 147
Gialilen Re Lid Series D FRN 08-Jan-27 500,000 302,300 .41
Kendal! Re Lid FRN 02-May-24 1,000,000 1,002,200 0§l
Kilimanjaro [l Re Lid FEN 21-Apr-22 2,000,000 2,016,200 1.64
Kilimanjaro [ Re Lid FRN 20-Apr-26 1,250,000 1,254,000 1.02
Kilimanjara [ Be Ltd Series A FRN 19%Dec-23 2,140,000 2,210,834 1.79
Kilimanjaro I11 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24 2,140,000 2,228.596 1.81
Kilimanjaro [11 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-23 1,400,000 1,425,760 1.16
Kilimanjaro Il Re Lid Series B FRN 19-Dec-24 1,290,000 1,321,476 1.07
Kilimanjaro Re Ltd 2018 1 A1 FRN 06-May-22 1,250,000 1,252,625 1.02
Kilimanjaro Re T.td 2018 1 FRN 05-May-26 2,725,000 2,747,073 223
Manates Re Lid 1 Seres B FRN 07-Jun-21 2,000,000 1,995 600 1.62
Matterhom Re Cat 0% 07-1Dee-23 1,750,000 1,633,100 1.32
Matterhom Re Ltd A FRN 07-Dec-23 £60.000 £60,860 0.70
Maticrhorn Re Lid B FRN 07-Dee-23 2830000 2832 264 2.30
Matterhomn Re Lid Series B FRN 07-Dec-23 GO0,000 900,540 0.73
Mona Lisa Re Lid Series A FRN 09-Jan-23 3,250,000 3,286,400 267
Mana Lisa Re Lid Series B FRN 09-Jan-23 4,000,000 4.038,800 328
Mystic Re Iv Lid FRN 08-Jan-24 2,000,000 2,043,400 1.66
Morthshore Re [T Lid 18 1 A FRN 08-Jul-22 2 125,000 2,161,125 1.75
Northshore Re 1T Lwd FRN 07-Jul-26 1,330,000 1,373,491 1.11
Pelican IV Re Lid FRN 07-May-24 2,000,000 2,004,000 1.63
Sanders Re 11 Ltd Serics B FRMN 07-Apr-23 3,500,000 175,000 .14
Sanders Re 1 Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27 1,GO0,000 400,000 032
Sanders Re Ltd FRN 07-Apr-22 Cat 3,550,000 3,195,000 259

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial slalemenis.
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{ Continued)
Fair

MNominal Value % of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding UsD NAY
Bermudsa (continued)
Sierra Ltd FEN 31-Jan-24 600,000 &01,380 0.49
Sierra Lid Series B FRN 28-Dec-23 720,000 T36.056 0.60
Spectrum Cap Lid FRN 08-Jun-21 Ca 1O0H, 000 1,000,400 0.81
Sutter Re Lid Series F FRN 08-Jun-26 2,250,000 2,304,000 1.87
Tailwind Re Lid 2017-1 FRN 08-Jan-22 1,250,000 1,237,500 1.0:0
Tailwind Re Lid 2007-1 FEN 08-Jan-22 450,000 431,350 .37
Tailwind Re Ltd 2017 1 B FEN 08-Jan-25 2,450,000 2,437,750 1.98
Torrey Pines Ke Fre Led FRN 07-Jun-24 3,350,000 3,344,640 271
Ursa Re 1l Ld FREN 07-Dec-23 1000, 000 1,030,000 L84
Ursa Re I Led FRN 06-Dec-24 3,750,000 3,789,375 307
Ursa Re Lid C FRN 10-Dec-22 1,200,000 1,231,680 [.o0
Ursa Re Ltd D FRN 24-Sep-21] 1,200,000 1,203 480 (.98
Vista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-24 1,750,000 1,754,725 1.42
Total Bermuda (Cost: USD94,543,799) 91,074,622 7191
Cayman Islands
Caelus Re VI T.td FRN 07-Jun-27 1. 700,000 340,000 0.28
Residential Re 18 Lid FRN 06-Dec-25 2,600,000 2,569,060 208
Residential Be 19 Ltd FREN 06-Jun-27 550,000 542,355 .44
Total Cayman Islands (Cost: US4 850,00} 3451415 2.80
Ireland
Adlas Capital Re 2020 FRN 08-Jun-27 1. 500,000 1,569,750 1.27
Hexagon Reinsurance Dac A FRN 17-Jap-25 250,000 307,308 0.25
Lion 1l Re Dac FRM 13-Jul-21 1 300,000 1,831,969 1.49
Total Treland (Cost: USD3,449,005) 3,709,027 301
Singapaore
Cosmnt Be Pre Lid FEN (3-Apr-24 1000, 000 1016800 082
First Coast Re 101 Pre FRN 07-Apr-25 2,500,000 2,504,500 203
Manaree Re ITT Pre Lid A FRN 07-Jun-22 SHHO, 060 95,500 073
Manarec Re LI Pre Lid B FEN 07-Iun-22 2.350,000 2.299.005 1.87
Putnam Rec Pre Lid FRN 07-Jun-24 2,250,000 2,249,775 1.83
Total Singapore (Cosr: USDE.999.967) 3,965,580 728

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Investments

May 31, 2021
{Continued)
Fair

Nominal Value %o of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding UsD NAY
Supranational
IBRD Scries A FRN (2-Dee-22 SOH000 504,750 041
IBRD Series B FRN 13-Jun-24 B0 (M0 B61.135 0.70
IBRID Series D FRN 13-]ul-24 630,00 639 815 (.53
Total Supranational {Cost: USSZ,0040,HH} 2025, 700 1.64
United Kingdom
Atlas Capital UK 2018 FRN 09-Jun-25 3,000,000 3,004,100 245
Atlas Capital UK 2019 FEN 08-Jun-26 2,725,000 2 B56,890 232
Sussex Cap UK PCC Lid FRN 08-Jan-25 1,123,000 1,153,687 0.93
Total United Kingdom (Cost: USIG,822,125) 1024677 570
Total CAT Bonds (Cost: USD120.664,896) 116,251,021 04.34

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2020 31
2020 31
2,3 93,251,042 10,436,657
2 333,205 37,292
98,651 2 100,134 11,207
4 0
171,297 19,172
93,855,682 10,504,328
23 3
6 133,179 14,905
133,202 14,908
93,722,480 10,489,420
NAV
55,438,885
546,450 101.45 11,354
NAV
4,124,483,100
412,040 10,010

2020 10
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2020 31
2020
8,806,614 985,636
5 (926,783) (103,726)
7,879,831 881,911
6,486 726
6,486 726
23 3
12,034 1,347
25,992 2,909
364,120 40,752
17,728 1,984
10,028 1,122
624,332 69,875
28,570 3,198
11,070 1,239
100,554 11,254
1,194,451 133,683
6,691,866 748,954
(381,028) (42,645)
21,390 2,394
(23,218) (2,599)
(382,856) (42,849)
(930,061) (104,092)
830 o3
(929,231) (104,000)
(1,312,087) (146,849)
5,379,779 602,105
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2020 31
2020

6,691,866 748,954
(381,028) (42,645)

21,390 2,394
(23,218) (2,599)
(930,061) (104,092)

830 93

5,379,779 602,105
(2,181,300) (244,131)
(351,971) (39,393)
(2,533,271) (283,524)

77,120 7,826,038 875,890

17,880
1,634,818 182,969
156,310
(15,739,151) (1,761,526)
25,700

(2,347,225) (262,701)
(8,625,520) (965,368)
(5,779,012) (646,787)

99,501,492 11,136,207

93,722,480 10,489,420
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2020

5,379,779

(6,470,165)
18,367,767
(7,879,831)

381,028
930,061
89,896
913

(87)
(85,442)
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602,105

(724,141)
2,055,720
(881,911)

42,645
104,092
10,061
102

(10)
(9,563)

10,713,919

1,199,102

9,460,856
(18,086,376)
(2,533,271)

1,058,859
(2,024,227)
(283,524)

(11,158,791)

(1,248,892)

(444,872)
878,211

(49,790)
98,289

433,339

48,499

7,398
(109)
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98.86 9,737
6.47 653
(0.58) (290)
5.89 363
(3.30) (90)

101.45 10,010

5.97% 3.73%

(1.15%) (1.15%)
(0.89%) (0.90%)
(2.04%) (2.05%)
8.42% 8.59%
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ASC 946

GAAP

NAV

2020 31
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2020 31

93,251,042 93,251,042

93,251,042 93,251,042
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2019 625,640 419,860
77,120 17,880
(156,310) (25,700)
2020 31 546,450 412,040
100
10,000

100 100 10
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11

2020 31
2,181,300 351,971

2020 31
775,371

100

12,000

5,000
5,000
1,000

1,000

0.025

0.35
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

May 31, 2020
Notes

Assets
Investments in Master Fund, fair value 23
Cash 2
Foreign currency cash (Cost: USD98,651) 2
Imterest receivable
Other assels
Total Assets
Liabilities
Interest payable
Fees payable 6

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Net Asset Value (“NAV™) per unit - Class USD Units
(hased on Net Assets of USD55,438,885 and 546,450 units outstanding)

MNAV per unit - Class JPY Hedged Units
(hased on Net Assets of JPY4,124, 483,100 and 412,040 units outstanding)

Signed on behalf of the Trustee

ez Armallr Lonor. Curtin

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
UsD

93,251,042
333,205
100,134

4
171,297

93,8

23
133,179

133,202

93,712,480

LUISD01.45

JPY 0,010

Date: 6™ Ociober 2020

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations

For the year ended May 31, 2020

Investment income
Interest income allocated from the Master Fund
Expenses allocated from the Master Fund
Met investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Fund interest income
Total fund income

Expenses

Interest expense

Administration fees

Manager fees

Investment Manager fees

Audit fees

Trustee fees

Distributor/Agent Company fees

Legal fees

Custodian fees

Other fees and expenses
Total fund expenses

MNet investment income

Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation
Realized loss:

Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund
Investments in securities

Foreign currency transactions

Met realized loss

Change in unrealized depreciation:

Investments in securitics, foreign curreney transactions and forward
currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Foreign currency transactions

Net change in unrealized depreciation

Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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8,806,614

(926,783)
7,879,831

6,486
6,486

23
12,034
25,992

364,120
17,728
10,028

624,332
28,570
11,070

100,554

1,194,451

6,691,866

(381,028)
21,390

(23.218)
(382,856)

(930,061)
830
(929,231)

(1,312,087)

5,379,779
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended May 31, 2020

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Met investment income

Net realized loss on investments in securities, foreign currency
transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master
Fund

Wet realized gain on investments in securities

Met realized loss on foreign currency transactions

Wet unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Met change in unrealized appreciation on foreign currency transactions

Met increase in Met Assets resulting from operations
Distributions to Unitholders:

Class USD Units
Class JPY Hedged Units

Capital Transactions

Units issued - Class USD Units (77,120 units)

Units issued - Class JPY Hedged Units (17,880 units)
Units redeemed - Class USD Units (156,310 units)

Units redeemed - Class JPY Hedged Units (25,700 units)

Met decrease in Net Assets resulting from capital transactions
Total decrease in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning of year

End of yvear

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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6,601,866
(381,028)

21,390
(23,218)

(930,061)
830
5,379,779
(2.181.300)
(351,971)
(2,533,271
7,826,038
1,634,818
(15.739,151)
(2,347,225)
(8,625,520)

(5.779,012)

99,501,492

93,722,480
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended May 31, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Net increase in Met Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in Net Assets resulting from
operations to net cash provided by operating activities:

Purchase of investments in the Master Fund

Sale of investments in the Master Fund

Net investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Net realized loss on investments in securities, foreign currency
transactions and forward eurrency contracts allocated from the Master
Fund

Net unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from
the Master Fund

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Drecrease in other assets

Decrease in interest receivable

Drecrease in interest payable

Drecrease in fees pavable

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows provided by financing activities
Proceeds from units issued

Paymenis for units redeemed

Distributions paid

Met cash used in financing activitics

Net change in cash and foreign currency cash
Cash and foreign currency cash at beginning of year

Cash and foreign currency cash at end of year

Supplementary information:
Interest received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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5,379,779

(6,470,165)
18,367,767
(7,879,831)

381028

930,061

89,896
913
(87)

(83.442)

10,713,919

9,460,856
(18,086,376)

(2.533,271)
(11,158,791})

(444,872)
878,211

433,339

7,398
(109)
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31, 2020
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Uniits Units
UsD JPY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAV per unit, beginning of year 98.86 9,737
Income from investment operations (B)
Net investment income 647 633
Met realized and change in unrealized loss (0.58) (290)
Total from investment operations 5.89 363
Distributions (3.30) (90)
MNAV per unit, end of vear 101.45 10,010
Total Return (A) 5.97% 3.73%
Ratios/supplemental data:
Ratio of expenses to average Net Assets (A)
Series Trust expenses (1.13%) (1.15%)
Allocated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses {0.89%) (0.90%)
Total expenses {2.04%) (2.05%)
Ratio of net investment income 1o average
Met Assets (A) £.42% B.59%5

{A) Total return is calculated based on the change in the NAV during the vear. Expense ratios
and net investment income ratios are caleulated based on the average Net Assets outstanding
throughout the period. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
operating expenses. Ratios between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses.
The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses,
including income and expenses allocated from the Master Fund,

(B) Results may vary based on the timing of capital transactions. Per unit information is
caleulated based upon the monthly average units outstanding during the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2020

Deseription of the Trust

NEK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund,
an open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master
Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Islands, The Series Trust was constituted by a
supplemental trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™) dated October 17, 2018, under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on November 15, 2018,

Effective October 1, 2019, the previous Investment Manager merged into Franklin Templeton
Investments Japan Limited (the “Tnvestment Manager™). International Management Services
Ltd. {the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust's Manager. SMT Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited {the “Administrator”) serves as the Series Trust’s Administrator.

The Series Trust™s strategy is consistent with the strategy of NK. CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund™). The Series Trust’s investment objective is to seck to achieve risk adjusted absolute
retums by gaining exposure to the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds).
The Series Trust seeks to achieve this investment objective through investing in the Master
Fund. Accordingly, the Series Trust acts as a feeder fund into the Master Fund such that
substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Units will be invested in the Master Fund.
The Series Trust owns 72% of the Master Fund at May 31, 2020.

The Master Fund's financial statements are attached to and should be read in conjunction with
the Series Trust's financial statements.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, G.ALS, (Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee™) is named as Trustee of the Serics Trust,

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited integrated their custody business into Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust Bank Limited, (London Branch) on March 2, 2020 following both UK and Japanese
regulatory approvals. Its ultimate parent which is Sumitome Mitsui Trust Holdings, Inc a
Japanese company quoted on the Tokyo Stock Exchange remains unchanged post the
integration.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease 2019
(“COVID-19") a pandemic. Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (ii)
the impact of the COVID-19 on global markets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP™). The preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U8, GAAP requires the Series Trust’s management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results,
ineluding the ultimate amount realized upon the sale of fair valued investments, could differ
from those estimates and such differences may be significant.

13
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company
accounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC")
946, Financial Services-Investment Companies,

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determination of the value of the Series Trust's
investments:

The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose objective is 1o seek to achieve risk
adjusted absolute returns by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seek 1o achieve its
investment objective by investing mainly in a global portfolio of CAT Bonds which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life and non-life insurance linked risk
including but not limited to life insurance, motor insurance, operational risk, and marine and
aviation and cyber risk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange, are not ordinarily traded
or exchanged through such securities exchanges or at the price available on such securities
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued using indicative secondary market bid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager.

Investments in the Master Fund were valucd, as a practical expedient, utilizing the unaudited
net asset valuations provided by administrators, without adjustment, when the net asset
valuations of the investments are caleulated in a manner consistent with U.S. GAAP.

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAV per
share as reported by the Master Fund, Valuation of financial instruments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 31, 2020 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund,

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell is
executed). Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first out
cost method,

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is accrued as earned/incurred. Interest earned
on the Series Trust’s brokerage account, if any, will be accrued monthly. Discounts and

premiums on Bonds are accreted/amortized to maturity on an effective yield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Operations.

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as incurred.

Foreign Currency Translation

Itemns which are included in the Series Trust's financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (“the functional currency™),
this is United States Dollar (“USD™).

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market
prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized
gain or loss from investments,

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) (formerly
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited) as its sub-custodian. Sumitomo Mitswi Trust Bank,
Limited {London Branch), has in turn, appointed Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. ("BBH") as
its global sub-custodian. Cash and foreign currency comprise cash with original maturities of 3
manths or less and are held at BBH as banker.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains
or other taxes payable by the Series Trust, In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Islands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest received by the Series Trust,
Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such jurisdictions gencrally will be exempt from
foreign income or withholding taxes at source. The Series Trust intends to conduct its affairs
such that it will not be subject o income tax in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for
income taxes has been made in the financial statements. Unitholders may be taxed on their
proportionate share of the Series Trust's tax basis income based on their individual
circumstances.

The Series Trust follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertginty in tax positions (FASB ASC 740), which requires management to determine
whether a tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to be sustained upon
examination by the applicable taxing authority, including resclution of any related appeals or
litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority. The
Manager has determined that there is no effect on the financial statements being under this
authoritative guidance,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enters into contracts
that contain a variety of representations, which provide general indemnifications. The Manager
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown (although capped at the NAV of the
Series Trust), as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Manager that
have not vet occurred. However, based on experience, Manager expects the risk of loss to be
remode.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity”, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount and number of
units requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. This generally may occur at the lime
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the
request. Redemptions payable may be treated as capital for purposes of allocations of
gains/(losses) pursuant to the Series Trust's governing documents. As at May 31, 2020, there
were no redemptions payable.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC B20, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides additional guidance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or liability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifying
circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues
used to measure fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted listed prices
in active markets for identical assets or lizbilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

= Level 1 = Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 = Inpuis other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 = Inputs that are unobservable,

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about risk. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary and provided by independent sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the
hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond to the Investment Manager’s perceived risk of that instrument.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level 1 with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
guoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by obscrvable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market
information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Series Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2020:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
Aszets UsD UsD UsD uUsh
Investment in Master Fund - 93,251,042 - 83,251,042
Total = 93,251,042 - 93,251,042

There were no transfers between the levels during the year.

4. Unit Capital

Class JFY

Class USD Hedged

Units Units

Mumber of units outstanding at June 1, 2019 625,640 419,860
Units issued during the year 77120 17.880
Units redeemed during the vear (156,310} (25,700)
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2020 546,450 412,040

One unitholder holds all of the Units atiributable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hedged
Units.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2020

{Continued)
Unit Capital (continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD100 per Unit. Class JPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. The minimum
subscription amount per subseriber in respect of each class of unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD class of Master Fund Shares. Subscription proceeds resulting from the issue of JPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares.

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
NAV per Unit of the relevant class of units on the valuation day falling on the relevant
subseription day.

The subscription day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third valuation day of cach
calendar month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time
determing in respect of the Series Trust.

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at cach Repurchase Day.
The Repurchase Day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time determine in
respect of the Series Trust.

The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust’s
assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number
of Units outstanding. In the normal course of events, gains and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benefit or detriment of holders of the applicable non-USD Master
Fund Shares only,

The Manager may declare and arrange for the payment of distributions in respect of any class
of units of such amount (iFany) as shall be determined by the Manager, after consultation with

the Investment Manager, and approved by the Trustee.

The ex-distribution date will be the valuation day which immediately follows the relevant
Distribution Record Date which is the second Friday of November in each year, providing that
if such day is not a Business Day then the immediately following Business Day and/or such
other date or dates as the Manager may determine in respect of any ¢lass of Units. For the vear
ended May 31, 2020, the Series Trust distributed USD2,181.300 in respect of Class USD Units
and USD351,971 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

MNotes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business. The Manager, Trustee and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed to be
related to the Series Trust. Fees incurred with related parties during the period are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations. Amounts payable to related parties at the period end are disclosed
in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
2020is USDT75,371.

SMBC Nikko Securities Inc., holds 100% of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged. As a result, any actions of SMBC Nikko Securities Inc. can materially impact the
Series Trust,

6. Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD12,000 per annum
of the MAY, accrued as of each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administeator is also entitled to; (a) an establishment fee of USDS,000; (b) an annual fee
of USDI5,000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Serics Trust; (¢) an annual fee of USD1,000 in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Series Trust with the Cayman [slands Monetary Awthority; and (d)
an annual fee of USD,000 in connection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain reports andfor statements required for Japanese regulatory purposes.

Manager Fees

The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.025% per annum of the
MWAV, acerued and caleulated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

Investment Manager Fees

The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% per annum
of the MAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
{(Continued)

6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

Trustee Fees
The Trustee receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USDI0.000 per annum
accrued as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fec of 0.50% per annum of the
MNAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears,

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.10% per annum
af the MAV, accrued and calculated on each valuation day and paid monthly in arrears.

Custodian Fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Series Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian's safe keeping fees are USD750 per month, accrued on each
valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at customary rates
as agreed between the Trustee and the Custodian.

The fees payable as at May 31, 2020 are as follows:

USsD

Administration fees 1,032
Manager fees 1,963
Investment Manager fees 27,709
Audit fees 17,326
Trustee fees a0
Distributor/Agent Company fees 47,626
Custodian fees 3,021
Other fees and expenses 33,642
133,179

7. Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liguidity risk.

Market Risk
All investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk
through a careful selection of investments.

The value of the Series Trust's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but
not limited to, changes in the wider economy, financial and currency markets and foreign
currency exchange rates,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

MNotes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

In a falling market environment, the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decline, and as a result, the NAY may decline below its initial principal amount. Also, adverse
developments in an issuer's economic conditions or such negative events as bankrupley may
cause the value of the equities to deeline substantially and may significantly impact the NAV.

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and non-monetary assets and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies other than USD. It may therefore be exposed to
currency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilitics denominated in other currencies will
fluctuate due 1o changes in exchange rates.

If investing in the securities of companies that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencics
may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those securities,

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterpartics
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust.

Although the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Series Trust may use from time to time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead to losses for the Series Trust.

While there arc codes and acts to protect customer property in the event of a failure, insolvency
or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to ils assets
being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both,
Because all of the Series Trust's cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Series Trust to achieve its
investment objective, The Series Trust is subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution
may he unable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed,

Liguidity Risk
Investors should be aware that the value of units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the

Series Trust involves a degree of risk; there can be no assurance that the Series Trust's
investment objective will be achieved.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2020

(Continuwed)
Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liguidity Risk {continued)

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continuc to
experience significant volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus known as
COVID-19. The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in travel and border restrictions,
guarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general market unceriainty,
The extent and duration of the impact of COVID-19 on global and local economies, financial
markets, and sectors and specific positions in which the Series Trust invests is uncertain at this
point and has the potential to continue to adversely affect the value of the Series Trust’s
portfolio and performance.

The Series Trust is exposed to repurchase of its units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and foresecable needs of its business
aperations and, if necessary, the liquidity to fund repurchases and achieve a market position
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
management to ensure that the Series Trust has the ability to meet its obligations.

The Series Trust may temporarily suspend the calculation of the NAY and therefore, the right
of redemptions and subscriptions of offered Units in exceptional circumstances, No issue or
redemption of Units will take place during any period when the caleulation of the NAV is
suspended.

Commitments and Contingencies
As at May 31, 2020, the Series Trust had no commitments or contingeneies.
Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2020:

Japanese Yen 107.73500
Recent Pronouncements

In January 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting
Standards Update 2016-01, Financial Instruments — Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (“ASU 2016-01"). The
improvement to the current ULS, GAAP primarily affects the accounting for equity investments,
financial liabilities under the fair value option, and the presentation and disclosure requirements
for financial instruments. In addition, the FASB clarified guidance related to the valuation
allowance assessment when recognising deferred tax assets resulting from unrealised losses on
available-for-sale debt securities, The accounting for other financial instruments, such as loans,
invesimenis in debt securities, and financial liabilities is largely unchanged. ASU 2016-01 is
effective in fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2018 and for interim periods within fiscal
years beginning after December 13, 2019, Early application of the guidance in ASU 2016-01
is not permitted, with certain exceptions. This pronouncement does not have any significant
impact on the Series Trust's financial statements,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
(Continued)

Recent Pronouncements (continued)

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Swutement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendment is intended 1o
reduce diversity in practice in how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash
flows, The issues addressed in the amendment are: debt prepayment or debt extinguishment
costs, settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments, contingent consideration payments made
after a business combination, proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims, proceeds from
the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life insurance
policies, distributions received from equity method investments, beneficial interests in
securitisation transactions; and, separately identifiable cash flows and application of the
predominance principle. The amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2018. This pronouncement does not have any significant impact on the Series Trust's
financial statements.

In Wovember 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230):
Restricted Cash. The amendments require that a statement of cash flows explain the change
during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as
restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash
equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end of period total amounts shown
on the statement of cash flows. The amendment does not provide a definition of restricted cash
or restricted cash equivalents. The amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, This pronouncement does not have any significant impact on the Secries
Trust's financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued the ASU 201813, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement.
The amendments in this update are issued as part of the FASB disclosure framework project.
The disclosure framework project’s objective and primary focus is to improve the effectiveness
of disclosures in the notes to financial statements by facilitating clear communication of the
information required under U.S. GAAP. The amendments in this update modify the disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements. Disclosure requirements for the amount of and
reasons for Level | and Level 11 transfers, the policy of timing of transfers between levels,
valuation process for Level 111 fair value measurements and the changes in unrealised gains and
losses for Level 11 investments held at the end of the reporting period have been removed. In
liew of a roll forward for Level I fair value measurements, diselosure is required regarding
transfers into and out of Level 111 of the fair value hicrarchy and purchases and issues of Level
111 assets and liabilities. ASU 2018-13 also amends disclosure requirements for the Level 111
reconciliation for non-public entities. The guidance is effective for financial statements with
fiscal vears beginning on or after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Series
Trust has adopted the provisions of ASU 2018-13 for the year ending May 31, 2020,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

MNotes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2020
{Continued)

11. Subsequent Events

Management performed a subseguent events review up to October 6, 2020, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective June 1, 2020 through to October &, 2020 investors subscribed USD1,385,181 in
respect of Class USD Units and USDNil in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units into the Series
Trust and investors redeemed USD4,237.813 in respect of Class USD Units and
USD17,147,615 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units from the Series Trust.

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved on October 6, 2020,
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2021
77,899,507.99 8,718,513
154,790.54 17,324
77,744,717.45 8,701,189
497,870
) 303,490
101.19 11,325
) 10,061
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

2,058,710 230,411 1,362,151 152,452

4 6 600,748 67,236 914,653 102,368
186,744 20,900 137,732 15,415
11 272,903 30,543 93,094 10,419

3,119,105 349,090 2,507,630 280,654

268,248 30,022 292,561 32,743
9 756,361 84,652 334,905 37,483
1,024,609 114,674 627,466 70,226

4,143,714 463,764 3,135,096 350,880

47,865 5,357 133,035 14,889

6 747,805 83,694 709,440 79,401
9 212,354 23,767 213,578 23,904
690,915 77,327 490,217 54,865

1,246,579 139,517 811,251 90,795
2,945,518 329,662 2,357,521 263,854

9 548,196 61,354 127,575 14,278
548,196 61,354 127,575 14,278

8 50,000 5,596 50,000 5,596
600,000 67,152 600,000 67,152

650,000 72,748 650,000 72,748

4,143,714 463,764 3,135,096 350,880

2021 25

1771259



EDINETOOOO

o = 2573

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 12 31
2020 2019
5 8,971,680 1,004,110 10,015,654 1,120,952
6 (66,854) (7,482) (126,731) (14,184)
8,904,826 996,628 9,888,923 1,106,768
539,448 60,375 512,319 57,339
52,721 5,901 61,113 6,840
9 10 (6,747,334)  (755,162)  (7,017,990)  (785,453)
2,749,661 307,742 3,444,365 385,493
2,749,661 307,742 3,444,365 385,493
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2020 12 31
2018 12 31 50,000 5,596 600,000 67,152 650,000 72,748
- 3,444,365 385,493 3,444,365 385,493
- (3,442,362)  (385,269)  (3,442,362)  (385,269)
2019 12 31 50,000 5,596 600,000 67,152 650,000 72,748
- 2,749,661 307,742 2,749,661 307,742
- (2,749,661)  (307,742)  (2,749,661)  (307,742)
2020 12 31 50,000 5,596 600,000 67,152 650,000 72,748
3,442,362 3,444,365
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2020 12 31
2020 2019
2,749,661 307,742 3,444,365 385,493

237,971 26,634 248,817 27,848
313,905 35,132 68,174 7,630
(49,012) (5,485) (25,204) (2,821)
(179,809)  (20,124) 64,317 7,198
(85,170) (9,532) (4,220) “72)
38,365 4,294 (26,521) (2,968)
200,697 22,462 (43,515) (4,870)
3,226,608 361,122 3,726,213 417,038
(3,264) (365) - -

- - 7,246 811

(3.264) (365) 7,246 811
(2,316,333)  (259,244) (3,582,647)  (400,970)
(210,452)  (23,554) (207,275)  (23,198)
(2,526,785)  (282,798) (3,789,922)  (424,168)
696,559 77,959 (56,463) (6,319)
1,362,151 152,452 1,418,614 158,771
2,058,710 230,411 1,362,151 152,452
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2020 12 31
1974 30
2020
1985 12 12 2019
1988 13 2010
1994 27
2020 12 2004
2020
2006 12 28
IMS
KY1-1102
61

2020 12 31 25 2019 27

(a
1ASB
IFRS
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(c
G
IFRS
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SH 2001 20
A.S. 1978 27
N.D. 1978 27
N.S. 1978 27
- 1979 10 26

NS 2012 27
INS 2013 25
* 2020 2019 12 31

(

(
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)
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2020 2020 2019 2019
0 30 90,065 (414) 282,381 (23,746)
31 60 27,898 an 49,882 (6,574)
61 90 25,623 € 56,610 (12,011)
91 831,379 (373,639) 842,771 (274,660)
974,965 (374,217) 1,231,644 (316,991)
(c
@
(e
(f
2020 2019 2010 2020
2020
40 50
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2020 2019
8,134,715 9,113,418
475,349 464,185
361,616 438,051
8,971,680 10,015, 654
2020 2019
(658,279) (640, 290)
2020 12 31 IFRS 15
2020 2019
974,965 1,231,644
(374,217) (316,991)
600,748 914,653
2020 2019
316,991 162,950
66,854 126,731
88,121 -
(97,769) 27,310
374,217 316,991
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2020

341,637 393,590 239,816 156,891 1,131,934

- 3,264 - - 3,264

341,637 396,854 239,816 156,891 1,135,198

185,889 373,774 181,491 98,219 839,373

3,689 12,096 7,393 4,399 27,577

189,578 385,870 188,884 102,618 866,950

2020 12 31
152,059 10,984 50,932 54,273 268,248
2019

341,637 402,996 239,816 156,891 1,141,340

- (9,406) - - (9,406)

341,637 393,590 239,816 156,891 1,131,934

181,790 358,853 172,710 90,884 804,237

4,099 17,083 8,781 7,335 37,298

- (2,162) - - (2,162)

185,889 373,774 181,491 98,219 839,373

2019 12 31
155,748 19,316 58,325 58,672 292,561
December 31, 2020 2020 12 31 December 31, 2019 2019 12 31
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2020 2019
80,000 96,000 96,000
41,667 50,000 50,000

( )
36

2020 2019
123,386 334,905
632,975 -
756,361 334,905

2020 2019
- 127,575 213,578
- 84,779 -
212,354 213,578
- - 127,575
- 548,196 -
548,196 127,575

2020 12 31
83,391 2019 113,355
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2020 12 31
2020 2019
475,349 464,186
IMS 125,414 116,239
2020 2019
272,903 93,094
2020 12 31 4,233,086 2019
4,464,445 63,289 2019 88,356
12.
2020 12 31
2019
13.

2021 25
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Congolidated Statement of Finaneial Position

December 31, 2020
frterted i United States dollars)
Mate 2020 019
Asgsets
Current asseis
Caah and cush eyuivalents 2,058,710 1,362,151
Acconnts receivable 4.0 G, TR o14,653
Other revcivahics and prepaid expenses 156,744 137,732
e frorm affiliated companies 11 272,903 03, 0o
3,119,105 2,507,630
Mon-current asscis
Property, plant and equipment 7 268,228 282,561
Right-of-use asscl 4 756,361 334,905
1,024,609 627,466
Total assets USs  4,143.714 3,135,086
Liahilities and sharcholder’s equity
Currcof labilities
Accounts puyebic and accrusd expenses 478635 133035
Unearned income and payvable to clients & T4T /05 T09 440
Lease Hability @ 212,354 213,578
Sraf¥ bonuscy puyable 00915 490,217
Davidends payabile 1,246,579 811,251
2,945,518 235750
Non-current labilities
Leae: Hability ) 548,194 127575
548,196 127,575
Sharcholder’s eguity
Share capital A 50,000 SR
Retuined ewmings GO OO0 00, 000
HE0000 650,000
Total Hahilities and shareholder®s equity IS5 4,143,714 3,135.0%

See accompanying notex o consolidated financial statements.
Approved on behalU ol the Board on Masch L 202

M’ Drirector
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.

Consolidated Statement of Comprelensive Income

Year ended December 31, 2020
{stated i United Siates dellars)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Mote 2020 2019
Income

Revenue 5 2,971 680 10,015,654
Less: Bad and doubtful debis i (66,854 ) (126,731)
8,904,326 0,888,023

Other income 539,448 512,319
Rental incode 52,721 61,113
Admimsration expenses 9,10 (6,747,334} {7.017,990)
Results from operating activities 2749661 3444 365
Net income for year Uss 2,749 661 3,444,365

See aecompanying notes fo consolidated ffnancial statenents,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder' s Equity

Year ended Decemnber 31, 2020
(stated in United Siates dellars)

Share Fetaimed
capital earmings Total

Balance at December 31, 2018 50,000 600, 00 G50, 000
Met income for vear - 344365 3444 365
Dividends declared - [3442362) (3.442.362)
Balance at December 31, 2009 30,000 G000 G350, 000
N income for year = 2749661 2.74% 661
Dividends declared = (2749.661) (2.749.661)
Balanee al December 31, 2020 Uss 50,040 GO0, 400 650,000

See accompanying noles o consolidafed fnancial siatemtents.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2020
{stated i United Siates dellars)

2020 2019
Operating activities
Met income for year 2749661 3444, 365
Add'{dedact
Items not affecting the movement of cash:
Drepreciation 237971 248,817
Met changes in non-cash balances relating (o operations:
Accounts receivable 313905 68,174
Other receivables and prepaid expenses (49.012) (25,204)
D from affiliated companies (179 809) 64,317
Accounts pavable and accred expenses (35.170) {(4,220)
Unearned income and payable to clients 38365 {26,521)
Staff bonuses payable 200,697 {43,515)
Met cazh provided by operating activitiesg 3,226 608 3,726,213
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assels (3.264) -
Loss on disposal of assets - 7,246
Met cash provided by fused ) imvesting activities {3,264) T.246
Financing activities
Dividesds paid {2,316,333) (3,582,647
Repayment of lease liabilities (210.452) (207,275)
Met cash used in fimancing activities (2.526.785) (3,780,922
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents during year 696, 555 {56,463)
Cash and cash equival ents beginmng of vear 1,362,151 1418614
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 5% 2,058,710 1,362,151

See qecompanying notes o consolidated financial siatenents.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTID.
MWotes to Consolidated Financial Statememts

December 31, 2020
(stated in United Siates dellars)

1. Imcorporation and background information
Intemational Management Senvices Lid (the “Compamy” } was incorporated ander the Companies
Law {2020 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on August 30, 1974 and provides company and
insurance management and corporate secretanal services, Om December 12, 1935, the Company
was Heensed wnder Section 4 (5) of The Companies Management Law (2019 Revision) (o carmy on
the busmess of company management nor within the Cayman Islands. On May 13, 1988, the
Company was licensed under Section 4 (2) of The Insurance Law 2010, to carry on the business of
insurance management in or within the Cayman Islands. On July 27, 1994, the Company was
licensed wnder Section 12 of The Mutual Funds Law (2020 Revsion) to carry on the business of
sl fnd admimigration, OnJone 7, 2004 the Company was licensed under the Banks and Trest
Companies Law (2020 Revision), to camy on trust busness from within the Cayman Tslands, On
December 28, 2006, the Company swrrendered its Companies Management Licence.
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The IMS Group Ltd,, a company also incorporated
in the Cayman Islands.
The finuncial results of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiares (the “Group™) are
consolidated at vear end to form the Group.
The registered office of the Company is 3 Floor Harbour Centre, George Town, PO Box 61 Grand
Cayman KY 1-1102, Cavman [slands.
The Group had 25 employees as at December 31, 2020 (2019: 27).

2, Basis of presentation

(el Stetemens of compliance
These consolidated financial statements are prepared and approved by the Direclors in
accordance with Intemational Fimancial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") 28 izsued by the
Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“TASBE™ ).
Management has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concem and
15 satisfied that the Group has the resources o continee in business for the foreseeable future,
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast a significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continug a5 a going concem. Therefore, the consolidated
financial satements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis,

(Bl Beasts of measurement
These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the histoncal cost basis except for
financial assets amd financial habilities which are measured at amortised cost,

fel Functional and presentation currency

The Group's functional and presentation curmency is the United States dollar and not the focal
crrrency of the Cayvman Islands reflecting the fact that the Group’s operations are primarily
conducted in United Siates dollars (LSS},
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTI,
Wotes to Consohdated Financial Statements {comimed)

December 31, 2020
{wieted in United Siates dollars)

1. Basis of presentation (continued)
(el Ulxe of estimates and judgenenis

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires
management 0 make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the repoted amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounis of income and expenses dunng the year. Actual resulis could differ from
those estimates.

(e} Corvesponding figures
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the cument year presentation.
(i New Standards effective for ammal perfod beginning § Janary 20260

There are no new standards or amendments effective for anneal penods begnning anary
2020 that will hawe a significant impact to the Groap.

3. Slgnificant accounting policles

The accouniing policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements, There have been no changes to accounting policies, The
significam accounting policies adopted by the Group are as follows:

{e) Conselichated wholly owned subsidicries

Date of

incorporation’

Campany Business addition
SH Corporate Services Lid Registered Office Services April 20, 2001
AS. Nominees Lid.* Mominee Company January 27, 1978
M., Mominee Lid, * Mominege Company Jamuary 27, 1978
M.5. Nominee Lid.* MNominee Company January 27, 1978
Cardinal Nominee Limited™ Mominee Company Cctober 26, 1979
M5 Trostees Lid = Trustee Services April 27, 2012
IM S Liguidations Lid, Ligquidation Services Jamuary 25, 2013

= These wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company have been established 1o act only in a
nominee capacity and have not traded in their own right during the year ended Drecember 31,
2020 and 2019,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTID.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (comtinued)

December 31, 2020
(stated in United Siates dellars)

3. Slgnificant accounting polides {continued)
(o) Conselidaied wholly owned subsidiaries fcomtinued)

Allincome earned and expenses incurred by these companies are account ed for by the Company
and all inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation, The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are inclueded inthe consolidasted financial statemenis from the date
that control commences to the date that control ceases. The Group accounts For business
combinations using the acquisition method when control is transfemed to the Group, The
consideration is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net asset acquired.

b Fioancial assets and labilites
i Clessificarion

A financial a=set is any assel that s cash, a contractual nght to receive cash or another
fimancial asset, or o exchange financial instroments undar conditions that are potentially
favourable or an equity instrument of another enterprise.  Financial assefs comprise
¢ash and cash equivalents, accounis eceivable, other receivaldes and prepaid expenses and
due from affiliated companies.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another Anancial aset or to exchange Anancial imstnments with anather enterprse under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable, Financial liabilities comprise due to affiliated
companies, accownts payable and accrued expenses, staff bonuses pavable and dividend
payable.

(i Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a
party o the contractual provisions of the insgmment ,

(i) Measrement

Financial instruments are measured imbally at cost. For financial assets acquired, cost
is the fair value of the consideration given, while for financial liabilities, cost is the fair
value of consideration received. The amortized cost of a financial asset or liahility is
the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition,
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation wsing the
effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and
the matunity amonnt, minus any reduction for impaimments,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTI,
Wotes to Consohdated Financial Statements {comimed)

December 31, 2020
{wieated in United Siates dollars)

3. Sigpificant accounting policies {continued)
(B Financial assets aond Hakilities (cominued)
it Fafrvalue
Fair value estimates are made at a specific poind in time, based on market conditions and
information about the financial ingtrument, These estimates are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of d@gnificant judgement and therefore, canmol be
determined with precision. Changes in assumplions could =ignificantly affect the
eslimates.
The carying amount of financial assets and liabilities is considered to approximate fair
value due o the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instroments,

vl Derecoghitfon

A financial asset is derecognized when the Group loges control over the contractual righis
that comprize that asset. This occurs when the right= are realised, expire or are sumendered.

A financial hatality is derecogmized when the obligstion specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

i Tmpairment and calewlaiion of recoveralle amonmt

[FRE 9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed (o an incurmed credit loss model.
The expected credit loss model requires the Group to account for expected credit losses
and changes in these expected credit losses @1 each repoming date to reflect changes in
credit nsk since initial recognition of the financial assetz. Inother words, it is not
necessary for a credit event (o have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The Group's accounts recervable 15 related to services that are different in nature, the
majorty are derived from the provision of fideciary services and then 1o a lesser extent
from the provision of registered office services. The clients that these services are
provided to consist of a majority of regulated and administrated hedge funds and insurance
captives, the remainder of clients are companies or trusts belonging to individuals or
individual companies.

Those very same clients may have fees oustanding for the emtire period, however, as the
client companies are in good standing it is highly probable that they will settle their dues
when renewing their companies’ registirations in the following year. Managemeni has
determined that providing for these fird category receivables in full for all ageing
categones is the most prudent path, conversely as mamgement believe second category
receivables Lo be fully collectabde, no provision would therefore be necessary as no credit
loss is expected,
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3. Slgnificant accounting polides {continued)
(b Fiwencial assets arnd labilies (comimyed)
il Tmpairment and calcwlaiion of recoverable amomn (comtimed)

Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
If ina subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occwrring after the write-down, the write-down or allowance
is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

fe} Revenue Recogmition

The Group recognizes revenie in the amount expected 1o be received for services supplied at a
poind in time or over time as contractual performance obligations are fulfilled and control of
services passes (o the customer.

Where the contractual performance obligations are satisfied over time and revenue is recog sed
over time,

Where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownershap have transferred to the costomer, This 15 at the point where the
service i delivered to the customer and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the
customer’s acceplance of the service.

Nature of services

The following is a description of the pnncipal activities from which the Group generates iis
revene.

(il Professional services
Fees generated from a range of professional services including directorship services,
captive insurance management services, trusiee senvices and anti-money lamndenng
SEIVICES,

{0 Meanagemens fee from related pariy
Fees generated from the provision of administraticn services 10 a related pary.

{iff) Regristered affice semices
Fees generated from the provision of registered office services.

Ferformance obligations and revenue recognition policies

The Group recognizes revemie from the provision of fiduciary and registered office services to
cliemt companies. The specific services required imvolve the annual provision of a director to act
in his fiduciary capacity for client companies as well as the provision of a client compmany
registered office for a set annual fee. In addition, a5 pat of the contractual terms, client
compamies also requine corporate services throughout the financial year on the basis of fees
specified m the contmact.
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3. Slgnificant accounting polides {continued)
fel Revenne Recogrifion
Ferformance obligations and revenue recognition policies (cominued)

Fiduciary services are provided for the annual period represented by a calendar vear which
coincides with the Growp's financial vear. The service is provided for the annual period unless
the client company relationship is terminating, and the director is formally required 1o resign
from the boand, in these cases pro-rated fees are agreed upon for the reduced.

The Group's standard contracts for fiduciary services involve a flat fee for the year however in
some instances a combination of both 2 flat fee for armual services recognised over lime as well
as a fee based on ime spent to pecform additional services in the Gduciary fimction. The director
services agreemends cutline the conditions of the performance obligations, these are ad-hoc
requests, based on the needs of the client company, These time spent services are distinet in
timing and are recognized tased on the date the service was performed.

The provision of registered office services is considered a distinct service which ocours in the
calendar vear, This period aligns with the Group and the Government financial vear, the revenue
15 therefore recogmzed when the service has been rendered, over the Anancial vear. Refer to
nate 6 for further disclosumnes.

Recognitfon of contract balances

A contract asset 15 the rght to consideration in exchange for services transferved to the customer.
If the Group perfforms by transfermng services to a codomer before the customer pavs
congideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the uneamed
considerstion that is conditional. The Group does not have any coniract assets as ai Drecember
31, 2020 (2019: USS Nil).

A cortract liability is the obligation 1o transfer services 1o a customer for which the Group has
received considerastion (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Growp transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the paymeni is made or the payment 15 due (whichever is earlier). Contract
ligbilities are recognised a5 revenue when the Group performs wider the contract. The Group's
contract Liakilities comprise unearned income from payments received that relate 1o the
following years revenue. Refer to note 6 for details.
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3. Slgnificant accounting polides {continued)
el Foreign currency

Asgets and labilities that are denominated in foreign comencies are translated at mtes of
exchange prevailing at the consolidated statement of financial pesition date, Transactions in
foresgn currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
Any resulling exchange gaing or losses are credited or debited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

fed Casft and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of current bank accounts held with financial institutions
with original terms to maturity of three months or less.

(i Property, plant and equipmeni
Property, plant and equipment are stated @ cod less accumulated depreciation and any
accumilaied impairment loss.

Drepreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income after taking
into accowt residual values over the followaing expected useful lives of the assets wing the

respective methods:
Office building 2.58epa Reducing Balance
Compiier equipment s pa,  Straight Line Method
Fumiture and equipment IPapa.  Reducing Balance
Leasehold improvements l®apa. Reducing Balance

The carmyving amount of propery, plant and equipment 15 reviewed @t cach reporting date to
determine whether there iz any indication of impaimment. Impainment losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the vear in which they are identi fied.

(g Leases

Al lesse commencement date, the Group recognises a ght-of-use asset and a lease Hability on
the balance sheet, The nght-of-use asset is measured &t cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease lability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of
any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencemend date (net of any mcentives recenvid).

The Group depreciates the might-of-use assels on a straight-line besis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier ofthe end of the useful hife of the nght-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The Group also assesses the nghi-of-use assel for imparment when such
indicators exast.
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3. Slgnificant accounting policles {continued)
(h Income recognition and fees bilfed in advance
Management fees are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the peried for which services are provided.
Unearned ncome and payvable (o chients comprise funds recerved from clients as prepayments
for services to be performed in future vears.

Ml Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the
acerual basis.

(i Emplovee benefits
(il Defined contribution pension plan
The Group participates in a defined comrbation plan. A defined contribution plan is a
pest-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a
separate entity and hos no legal or constructive obligation if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefils relafing (o emploves service in the cuarrent
and prior periods, Obligations for contribigions to defined contribution pension plans ane
recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.

(i} Shoreerm bewnefiis
Shor-term emplovee benefit oblipations are measured on an undiscounted basis and
expensed as the related service 15 provaded, A halality 15 recogmsed for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash bomms or profit-sharing plans if the Group has

a presem legal or consgtructive obligation 1o pay this amow as a result of past service
provided by the emploves and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ikl Assets swnder adninisivation

In the nommal course of siness, the Group provides fiducary services by acting as trstee of
Trusts, The assets and liabilities of the Trosts under the Group’s management are nod incorporsed
inithese comsolidated financial statements.

4. Finandal risk management

fi Tntvodieetion o overview

The Group has exposure to credit, hquidity and market nsks throwgh its firancial mstroments, This
nole presents information about the Group's exposure to each of these nsks and the Group's
objecive, policies and processes for measunng and managing nsk and the Group's management of
capital.
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4. Finandal risk management {continued)
Risk muzncigemeni framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's financial risk management framework.

(B Credit risk

Credit nsk is the nsk of financial loss to the Group if 2 client or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its obligations and anses primarily from the Group's accounts
recetvable, cash and cash equivalents, and due from affiliated companies.

The Group's exposure to credit nsk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenistics of
each client. The demographics of the Group's client base, including the defavlt nsk of the
industry and country in which clients operate, has less of an influence on credit sk, Mo client
individually represents more than 5% of the Group's income.

The Group's establishes a provision for bad and doubeful accounts that represents ils estimate
of incumed losses in respect of accounts receivable, The allowance is for specific balances
within certain ageing periods,

The nature of the Group's exposure to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for
managing credit nsk have not changed significantly from the prior year. The Group®s maximuam
exposure Lo credit isk is the camrying valne of its financial assets,

Mearagement of credii risk

The Group manages credit nisk in respect of cash and cash equivalents by using reputable
financial institutions to safeguard these financial assetz. Management does mod expect any
financial 1osses as a resull of these relationships.

The Growp manages credit risk i espect of aceounts receivables by perfomming intial credit
evaluations of the financial condition of its clients. Periodic reviews of outstanding customer
balances are performed by management, Management does not expect any sigmificant

counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. Management believe that unimpaired amoants
that are past due are fill collectible in full.

15
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4. Finandal risk managemeni (continued)
The Group's aging of accounts receivables al the reporting date was:

Gross  Impairment Gross  Impairment
2020 2020 2019 2019
0 1o 30 days 90,065 (414) 282,381 {23,746)
31 to 60 days 27,898 (77 49,232 (6.574)
61 to 20 days 25,623 (87) 56,610 {12,011}
More than 91 days 831,379 {373,63%) 842,771 (274,660)

5§ 974,965 {374,217) 1,231,644 (316,991)

fe} Lignetclity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its inancial obligations as they
fall due. The Group's approach to manasing liquidity is to ensure, a2 far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its Babilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incuming unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group's reputation.
The nature of the Group's exposure (o lgudity sk and its objectives, policies and processes
for managing liquidity nsk have not chamged significantly from the prior year.

e} Marker risk

Market nsk is the nsk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, will affect
the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk manggement is (o manage and control market nsk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while oplimising the return.

fel Currency risk

Currency risks arise as a portion of the Group's payment of expenses are in Cavman Island
dollars. Currency rigk is mitigated as the Cayman Islands dollar iz fixed againzt the United States
dollar.

(f Capital manage ment

The Group’s regulator, the Cayman Islands Monetary Autharity (the “ Authority™}, sets and monitors
capital requirements for the Group under the Mondary Authority Law (2020 Revisaon), the
Companies Management Law (2019 Revision), the Insurance Law, 2010, the Mutual Funds Law
{2020 Revision} and the Bank and Trug Companies Law (2020 Revigon). The Group is required o
fave a minimum net worth of CTSA00.000 (USS500,000) and has 2 3 month filing deadline after vear
end date. The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to sustain future development of
the business. The Group has complied with all imposed capital requirements throughout the vear,
and there were no material changes to the Group®s management of capital during the year.

205/259



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTID.
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statement s {comimed)

December 31, 2020
{stated in United Siates dellars)

5. Revenue

Eevenue is measured tased on the consideration specified in a contract with a clients and excludes
amouis collecied on behalf of third parties.

A disaggregation of reverme recognised from contracts with clients by service offering at the
reporting date is outlined below.

Disagpregated revenue
2020 2019
Professional services 3,134,715 9113418
Management fee from related party 475,149 464,185
Registered office services 361616 438,051
US% 5971680 10,015,654

Anmueal fees are fees charged for the services noted above to client companies. This is primarily in
the form of fixed fees. with additional fees earned on a time spent basis a5 changed throughout the
year. Revenue is recognised over time s services ane rendered or at a point in time when controd of

the service transfers to the clients,
Conrract Habififfies

The following table prosades information about the contract habilities from comracts with clients,
the figures below constitute the revenme portion of amounts represented as unearned income and

payable to clients:
Contract Liabilities
2020 2019
Increases due to payments received that relate to the following
YEArS TEVere (658,279) {640, 2500

Mo information is provided about remaining performance obligations at December 31, 2020 that have
original expected doration of one year or less, as allowed by IFRS 15
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6. Accounis recelvable

2020 2019

Gross accounts receivabile 974, H65 1.231.644
Provasaon for doulbdful accounts (374.217) {316,991

158 600,748 914,653
Movements in the provision for doubtful accounts during the year are as follows;

2020 2019

Balance o beginning of vear 316,991 162,950
Charge to consolidated statement of comprehensive income 66,854 126,731
Recovienes of donbt ful debts 88,121 -
Drowbeful debts written off (97, 769) 27.310

L1 53 374,217 316,991

7. Property, plant and equi pment
Office Compter Fumiture & Leasehold
2020 nlding  equpment  equipment  improvements Total
Cost:
Balance af beginning 1637 393,550 239,816 156,891 1131934
of year
Additions - 3.264 - 3,264
[isposals - - - - -
Balance af end of year 341,637 39685 239 816 156,591 1,135,198
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance af beginning 185,889 373774 181,491 98,219 839,373
of year
Charge for year 3,689 12,096 7,393 4,399 27.577
Balance a1 end of year 189 578 385870 185,884 102,618 B66, 950
Net book valie at
December 31, 2020 USS 152,059 10,984 50,932 54,273 268,248
13
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7. Property, plant and equl pment {continued)

Office  Compafer  Furmiture & Leasehold

201% building equipmeni equipmeni  imMprovemenis Total
ot
Balance s beginmning Miew 402994 239 816 156,391 1,141,340

of year
Additions - . - a i
[hsposals - (9,406 ) - (5.406)
Balance af end -nf)-car 31637 393,590 239,316 156,891 1,131,934
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance o beginning 181,750 IFRE53 172,710 a0,884 804,237

of year
Charge for year 4,099 17,083 8,781 7,335 37,208
Drisposals - (2.162) - - (2,162)
Balance o end of year 185,889 173,774 181,4%1 8215 836,373
Met book value a
December 31, 2020 USS 155,748 19,316 58,325 58,672 292,561

8. Share capital
2020 2015

Authonsed:

80,000 shares of CI31 cach LI5S Oy, (R0 Qi 000
Issned and fully padd:

41,667 shares LI5S S, (R 50,000

19
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9. Leases

The Growp has a lease for its operating premises, a floor of an office building. The lease is reflected
on the consolidated statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease Liability, The
Group classifies i1s dght-of-use asset in a consistent manner (o its property, plant and equipment
(see Mote T},

The lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contmactual right for the Group to
aubilet the asset to another party, the nght-of-use asset can only be wsed by the Group. Leases may
only be cancelled by incurming a substantive termination fee. The Group's current lease has a
remaining term of 7 months. Management believe the renewal of the lease under the curment terms
fior a further 36 months is reasonably certain.

The table below describes the mature of the Group's leasing activities recognised on the balance

sheet:
Fight-of-use asset 2020 2019
Office premises 123,386 334,905
Renewed Office premises 632,975 -

L1558 756,361 334,905

Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2020 2019
Less than one year

- Current lease 127,575 213,578
= Lemse renewal 84,779 -
212,354 213,578

Greater than cne year
- Curren |ease - 127,575
= Lease renewal 545196 -
U535 518,196 127,575

209/259



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Wotes to Consohdated Financial Statements {comimed)

December 31, 2020
{wieted in United Siates dollars)

10. Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in the Fidelity Pension Plan, a defined confribution pension scheme. The
Group 15 required to match each employes’s contritation on a one to one basis up to 5% of the
employee’s anmual salary, Dunng the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group contnbuted
LFS583.381 (2019 US5113.355).

11. Related party fransactions

Dunng the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group samed the following sdmindration and
management fzes from its affiliated compamies:

2020 2019
Corporate Filing Services Ltd. USE 47539 464,186
M S Securities Lid, 125414 116,239
Amonmts due from related affiliates are as follows;

2020 2019
Corporate Filing Seraces Lid Uss 272,93 93,094

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group paid USS 4,233 086 (2009 US54 464 445)
in sho4erm emplovment benefits and USS 63,289 (2019 US3588.356) in long-term employment
benefits to key mamagement personnel.

12. Contingendes
The Group, inits fduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice of the Group's legal counsel,
no contingency provisions are requined at 31 December 2020 (2015 Mil).

13. Subsequent evenis
In prepanng these consolidated financial statements, management has evaluaed and disclosed all
material subsequent events up to March 25, 2021 which is the date that the consolidated financial
statements were avallable to be ssued.

21
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Independent auditor’ s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2020, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust’ s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2020;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2020;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust’ s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the Series Trust’ s financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust' s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust’ s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands
October 6, 2020
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Independent auditor’ s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2021, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust’ s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2021;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2021;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust’ s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust' s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust’ s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor’ s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands
September 24, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT
To the Directors of International Management Services Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International Management Services Ltd. (the
“Company™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the
related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders® equity and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared uner the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects
the financial position of the Company as at December 31,2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*1FRS”).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company*s Directors as a body and
for regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SA™). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor*s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“1ESBA Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*®s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibi lities for the Audit of the Consol idated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor”s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAwill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management"s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company”s ability to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor"s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

GrantThornton
George Town,
Grand Cayman
March 25, 2021
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